SPSO decision report



Sector: Local Government

Subject: Child services and family support Decision: some upheld, recommendations



C complained about the council's handling of allegations that their child made against them, including decisions taken to remove their child from the family home on the evening of the incident, but then considered safe to return the following day. C also complained about a lack of support for their family following the incident. C made a subsequent complaint about the council's handling of disclosures made by their child to social workers regarding a previous overdose.

In response to the complaints, the council said that once a child protection issue was raised by C's child, this was responded to quickly and in line with child protection procedures. Decisions about where C's child should stay whilst police investigations were ongoing were taken in collaboration with the family and it was determined following a risk assessment that there was no grounds to require C's child to stay away from the family home. The council explained the nature and purpose of follow up meetings.

With respect to disclosures made by C's child that they had previously taken an overdose, the council said that the social worker's professional opinion was that it was not necessary to pass this information on to the child's parents, and instead recorded a note of the incident. The council did however acknowledge that there was no record of why the social worker had come to this determination and course of action.

We took independent advice from a social work adviser. We found that whenever information is provided concerning actual or alleged abuse, this must be investigated and we considered that actions taken by the council's social worker to be reasonable in this regard. With respect to decision making around removing C's child from the family home, whilst the circumstances are disputed, the records indicated that there were discussions with the family about the decision making in this regard and additional factors, including the lateness of the day, were taken into consideration. The approach in the circumstances was therefore considered to be reasonable.

With respect to C's child returning to the family home the following day, we found that there was no immediate risk to C's child should they stay at home and it was reasonable for them to return home the day following the incident. On this basis, we did not uphold C's complaint about the appropriateness of the council's Child Protection investigation.

In considering C's concerns about the handling of their child's disclosure of a previous overdose, we acknowledged the council's position that it may be appropriate in some circumstances not to share such information with a child's parents, such as in circumstances where the child does not want the information shared. However, we found that there was no evidence of such a discussion having taken place, or of the reasoning behind decisions taken not to share this information with C or their partner. We therefore found that there was a failure by the social worker to record a discussion with C's child and the reasons for not informing their parents of the overdose. On this basis, we upheld the complaint.



Recommendations

What we asked the organisation to do in this case:

• Apologise to C and their partner for the issues highlighted. The apology should meet the standards set out in the SPSO guidelines on apology available at www.spso.org.uk/information-leaflets.

What we said should change to put things right in future:

• That the council share this decision with the social work team with a view to reminding them of the importance of recording all discussions and decision making considerations in child protection case notes.

We have asked the organisation to provide us with evidence that they have implemented the recommendations we have made on this case by the deadline we set.